
 PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL 
 WORKSHOP 
 TUESDAY, APRIL 13, 2010 
 PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
 
MINUTES of the Prescott City Council Workshop held on April 13, 2010 in the City Hall 
Council Chambers, 201 South Cortez, Prescott, Arizona. 
  

  CALL TO ORDER 
    
 Mayor Kuykendall called the Workshop to order at 1:00 p.m.  
 

  ROLL CALL:    
 
  PRESENT:    ABSENT: 
  

Mayor Kuykendall   Councilwoman Suttles* 
Councilman Blair    
Councilman Hanna    
Councilman Lamerson   
Councilwoman Linn 
Councilwoman Lopas 
 
* excused  

 
1. Discussion of process re Charter amendments. 
 
 Liz Burke, City Clerk, noted that the staff was directed by Council to look over the 

City Charter to determine if, other than the election items, there were other items 
that should be changed. The staff submitted those changes to Council a month 
ago for their review. 

 
 She said that if the Council wanted any of the election items to go on the ballot in 

November for a Charter Amendment they needed to get moving. The ballot 
language needed to be determined by the end of June and the last Regular 
Meeting in June was the 15th. 

  
She did not want to get into the specific items that day, but showed them what 
was being proposed to see if the Council wanted to move forward and put a sub 
committee together.  

 
 The ability to get the items on the November ballot would allow them to get 

everything in place and ready for next year’s regular candidate elections. 
 
 Councilwoman Linn said that Liz did a good job and it was a huge task. She 

thanked Ms. Burke, Councilman Hanna and Councilman Lamerson for their help.  



Prescott City Council  
Workshop – April 13, 2010                                                     Page 2 
 
 
 Councilman Blair asked what would happen if a candidate became unqualified 

based on moving outside the City limits. He thought that they needed to define 
what an “elector” was during the time of filing. There should be a definition of an 
“elector” who moved outside of the City limits. Mr. Kidd said that there was not a 
definition.  

 
 Councilman Hanna said that he felt that it was under the same category, if they 

were qualified at the time of filing, were elected, and then moved out of the City, 
they were no longer eligible to serve. He thought that it would also apply to those 
running for office. 

 
 Ms. Burke said that it was brought up based on the issue that arose last year 

regarding a candidate who met all of the requirements, but at the time of filing, 
that wording was not in there. He was a qualified elector; he was not qualified in 
Prescott. 

 
 Councilwoman Linn said that she also thought that it was in the verbiage that the 

Clerk would be able to cross out any names that were blatantly obvious, who 
lived outside the City limits. 

 
 Councilman Blair said that he thought there was a difference of being elected 

and then moving out opposed to the time when someone would be taking out 
petitions and then move outside of the City and continue to run. He asked if that 
person would get disqualified if he moved outside of the City during that process. 

 
 Councilwoman Linn said that she did not think that the person could be sworn in 

unless he was a qualified elector. Councilman Blair said that it would allow 
someone to be on the ballot if they did not clear that up.  

 
 Ms. Burke suggested that a subcommittee be created to discuss all of the items 

they would like to have changed. Mr. Kidd said that the trick in doing the Election 
Charter Amendments was to make sure that they did regulations on the Charter 
for matters of local interest. It was trickier with election issues because they had 
to be consistent with the State framework.  

 
 Councilman Blair said that he would like to see the role of the Clerk, during the 

election process, as bullet points, so that it was clear to everyone. Ms. Burke 
asked that the items that they would like her to do be made very specific because 
it would be different than what the rest of the clerks in the State do and what she 
had been trained to do. 

 
 Councilwoman Linn asked if she was referring to proving that a candidate was a 

qualified elector. Ms. Burke said that she did not do that now. Councilman Hanna 
said that if spelling it out would make it easier, than they should do that. 

 



Prescott City Council  
Workshop – April 13, 2010                                                     Page 3 
 
 Councilman Lamerson said that he presumed that they were looking at election 

items as a whole and he deferred to Gary Kidd concerning a letter that they 
received from Council General from the State House of Representatives in the 
State of Arizona regarding what they could and could not do in a Charter City 
with Chartered Amendments and why 25% was required to form a Charter and 
that it was also required to change a Charter. The number of signatures required 
needed to be clearly defined. He said that Terry Goddard said that it would be 
25%, not 15%, in Prescott with regards to signature petition requirements. 

 
 Mr. Kidd said that the Charter currently referred to the constitution.  They need to 

determine which part of the constitution they would be referring to. 
 
 Councilwoman Linn, Councilman Lamerson and Councilman Blair said that they 

would be happy to work on the subcommittee. 
 
2. Discussion and update on Elks Opera House direction.  
    

Mr. Norwood said that the presentation was to update everyone as to where they 
where and where they were going, talk about the enhancements and talk about 
the pricing structure.  
  
There would be no more $600 to $700 shows on a Friday/Saturday night. There 
would be some sticker shock for those that have used it in the past. They are 
looking at $1200 and up, which was well below the Yavapai Performance Hall 
and close to the Ruth Street Theater.   
 
They had booked 16 shows from September through November and about 10 
shows in December at full rate. 

     
Mr. Fenech gave special thanks to the City for about $1.5 million for 
infrastructure improvements including the sprinkler system and marquee and 
another $.5 million in grant funds for the first and second lobby. 
 
He thanked the Elk’s Opera House Foundation for raising $1.6 million for the 
restoration of the interior of the theater with $1 million of that coming in from the 
James Family Trust. About a month and one half ago, they gave another $.25 
million. He also thanked the volunteers and Mitchell Pietz, 4 time Emmy Award 
winner who had donated time and equipment. He donated everything from 
bubble, snow and fog machines, wireless mics, sound effects and man power. 
His credits included the Roseanne Show, Jerry Lewis Telathon, the OJ Trial, 
Hussein Trial, Acker Night, etc. He was doing all of the sound and video wiring 
for the Elk’s. 

 
Mr. Fenech then presented a PowerPoint presentation that addressed the 
following:  

   



Prescott City Council  
Workshop – April 13, 2010                                                     Page 4 
 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
   

MAIN FLOOR SEATING 
    

BALCONY SEATING 
    

CEILING STENCILING 
   

TRUMP D’OIEL 
    

PLASTER CAPITAL 
    

PROSCENIUM CORBELS 
    

ELKS THEATER – MARQUEE 
    

TECHNICAL ENHANCEMENTS 
    

NEW THEATER DRAPES 
    

THEATER SOUND 
    

LIGHTING AND VISUAL EFFECTS 
    

COLLATERAL 
    

PRICING COMPARISON 
    

PROGRAMS AND SEATING LAYOUT 
   

BOOKING STRATEGY 
     

VENDINI TICKETING SYSTEM 
    

SHOWUP.COM 
    

SOCIAL MEDIA – TWITTER, FACEBOOK, LINKEDIN 
    

GALA INVITATION 
   

GALA EVENT 
   
  THANKS TO LOCAL BUSINESSES 
    



Prescott City Council  
Workshop – April 13, 2010                                                     Page 5 
 

Councilman Blair said that it was wonderful to see what had been done. He 
asked if the cleaning was tied to the rehearsals and shows.  Mr. Fenech said that 
there was no charge for cleaning if there was a rehearsal on stage. If they 
brought in a lot of people and made a mess, they would be charged.  

   
Councilwoman Linn thanked everyone for their time and effort.  

 
Councilman Lamerson thanked the James Family for their entrepreneurial spirit.  
He also thanked the Foundation and volunteerism. It showed him the spirit of 
public/private partnership in promoting the Elks.  He thanked Mr. Fenech and 
Mr. Norwood for the infrastructure.  
    
Councilman Hanna thanked the James Family. They stepped up to the plate 
when needed. Their name was synonymous with donations.  He also thanked to 
Bill Otwell, the Haleys, Mr. Pietz, Elisabeth Ruffner, Mr. Fenech and 
Mr. Norwood.  

    
Councilwoman Lopas said that it was a true community spirit. She thanked 
everyone with the Foundation and Mr. Fenech.  

    
Mr. Norwood asked John Olsen and the members of Elks Opera House 
Foundation to stand for a thank you. He said that they were expecting the 
revenues to triple in the first year. He said that it was fantastic for Northern 
Arizona.  

    
Mr. Lamerson thanked Mr. Pietz for his time. 

    
Councilwoman Linn thanked the Foundation.  

    
Ms. Rufner said that the Kiekefer Morris Foundation had donated nearly 
$100,000. She also commended Dawn Castenada for working with the Elks for 
seven years, through times when it was abandoned. When the Arts Council got a 
committee together to save the Elks, Dawn was there. Not enough thanks could 
go to her. 
 
Barbara Bruce, representing Springhill Suites and Residence Inn, said that it was 
her distinct pleasure to be a supporter. She said that it was also a privilege to 
host the grand reopening and to have the caliber of artists coming to the 
reopening to showcase for the world. It would elevate Prescott as a premier 
destination. They had already recommended the Elks as a distinctive new venue 
for other events. They saw it as a venue in Prescott that would attract corporate, 
association and social events.  

    
John Olsen, Chairman of the Elks Foundation, commended the City of Prescott 
and staff for being there for them. Five years ago when they first started this the 
outlook was bleak. Several of them went to the City and said if they stuck with 



Prescott City Council  
Workshop – April 13, 2010                                                     Page 6 
 

them the foundation would undertake the funding. They could not have gotten 
where they were today without the City.   

    
Bob Luzius noted that Mic Fenech had done a fantastic job. 

   
Ginny King, Prescott, said that she appreciated what a tremendous tourism asset 
the Elks could be. She asked if the locals might be able to pay less for their 
events.       
 
Mr. Norwood said that they were looking at reduced rates on Monday through 
Thursday for local community groups. When it came to Friday, Saturday and 
Sunday, there would be no discounts. Those are the dates the City had to 
capitalize on.   

    
Councilman Blair asked if there would be diagonal parking in the front of the 
building and if there would be a valet service or shuttle service from the parking 
garage and back. Mr. Fenech said that he would look into it. 

   
Russell Parker, Prescott, said that nearly 10 years ago he stood at the podium 
when there was a great deal of doubt about whether the City would continue to 
support the Elks. He thanked Warren Miller for his support, his own wife, Carl 
Bower and Herb Voss.  

    
Melissa Ruffner, Prescott, said that the family connection with the Elks Opera 
House went back several generations. Her great uncle, George Ruffner, sheriff of 
the County, was one of the Exalted Rulers as well as her grandfather and father. 
Her grandmother performed on the stage as did she and her mother.  She 
thought it was so incredible that they had moved from the night of singing Angels 
We Have Heard on High, with the radiators clanking in the background, to 
bringing the Elks back to life.  

 
3. Adjournment. 
    

There being no further business to be discussed, the Workshop of the Prescott 
City Council held on April 13, 2010, adjourned at 2:01 p.m.  

 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      MARLIN D. KUYKENDALL, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk 
 


